ROUTT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
DRAFT MINUTES
July 21, 2022

The regular meeting of the Routt County Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m.
with the following members present: Chairman Steve Warnke and Commissioners, Bill Norris, Paul
Weese, Greg Jaeger, Jim DeFrancia, Ren Martyn, and Linda Miller. Commissioners Brian Kelly
and Andrew Benjamin were absent. Planning Director Kristy Winser and staff planners Alan
Goldich and Michael Fitz also attended. Sarah Katherman prepared the minutes.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

MINUTES - May 5, 2022
Commissioner DeFrancia moved to approve the above cite
Martyn seconded the motion. The motion carried 7 -0,

MINUTES - June 23, 2022
Commissioner DeFrancia moved to approve the above
Martyn seconded the motion. The motion ca

ACTIVITY: PL20220038
PETITIONER: James Ingwe , ilds, and Frances & Arthur Callahan

PETITION: uckhead Ranch Lots 2 & 3

LOCATION:

Chairman Warnke dis¢ he'is member of the Board of the Steamboat Lake Homeowners'’
Association and is Chair 0 itectural review committee. He said that this would not affect his

Mr. Jim Ingwersen reviewed the petition for a lot line adjustment and vacation of utility easements,
noting that if it were not for the utility easement the lot line adjustment could have been
accomplished administratively. He said that he and his wife had purchased Lot 3 and had identified
the best building location, but cannot build there due to the required setbacks and other constraints
on the property. He noted that the property line bisects a pond, which the neighboring property
owners, the Callahans, would like to have on their property. He said that the proposed lot line
adjustment would be mutually beneficial and would retain the existing acreages of the lots.

Mr. Fitz reviewed the site plan and compared the existing lot line with the proposed new plat. He
pointed out the driveway easement and the proposed building site. He stated that the proposed lot
line adjustment serves multiple functions: it accommodates the desired building site, allows the



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

pond to be located on the Callahan’s property and allows for a driveway easement that benefits
both lots

There was no public comment.

LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT

MOTION

Commissioner Weese moved to recommend approval of the lot line adjustment with the finding of
fact that the proposal with the following conditions meets with Sections 2, 3, and 6 of the applicable
guidelines of the Routt County Zoning Regulations and Section 2 and 3 of the Subdivision
Regulations.

This approval is subject to the following conditions:

General Conditions:
1. The plat shall be finalized and recorded within one (1)
pursuant to Section 2.1.6, Routt County Subdivisio

(1) year may be approved administratively.

less and extensionis granted
. Extensions to up to one

2. Prior to recordation, the applicant shall sub ic copy of the approved plat to
the County Planning Department in a . DWG other format acceptable to the GIS
Department.

3. A Cerificate of Taxes Due showing a

plat.

4. A ‘no build’ zone shall befidicate lat to avoid construction of structures, septic
fields and roads in are ng. ited to 30% or greater slopes. The “no build”
zones shall be approvediy. the'P Director before the plat is recorded.

7. The notes on the P all include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Routt County is not responsible for maintaining or improving subdivision roads. The
roads shown hereon have not been dedicated nor accepted by the County.

b. The suitability of these lots for an individual septic disposal system and the availability
of permits for individual septic disposal systems have not been established. The
issuance of permits for individual septic disposal systems shall be a condition of
obtaining a building permit for these lots.

c. Existing and new accesses shall meet access standards set forth by the Routt County
Road and Bridge Department and Fire Prevention Services.

d. The availability of water and permits for wells on the lots or parcels hereon shown has
not been established.



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

e. Revegetation of disturbed areas shall occur within one growing season with a seed
mix that avoids the use of aggressive grasses. See the Colorado State University
Extension Office for appropriate grass mixes.

f.  Routt County (County) and the North Routt Fire District (District) shall be held
harmless from any injury, damage, or claim that may be made against the County or
the District by reason of the County’s or the District's failure to provide ambulance, fire,
rescue or police protection to the property described on this plat, provided that the
failure to provide such services is due to inaccessibility of the property by reason of
internal roads being impassable. This conditions shall not relieve the County or the
District of their responsibility to make a bona fide effort to provide emergency services
should the need arise.

g. Address signage in conformance with Routt County Road Addressing, Naming, and
Signing Policy shall be located at the entrance to the di¢€way.

table nature to support

h. A current soils test showing that the soil is of a suffi

development will be required before obtaining ildli it.
i. The Declaration of Covenants and Con r Steamboat Lakes
Subdivision Unit Numbers One, Two, Th our are recorded at Book 356 at

active fault rupture Zon

UTILITY EASEMEN

MOTION
Commissioner Weese moved t@recommend approval of the vacation of utility easements

with the finding of fact that the&"proposal with the following conditions complies with the applicable
guidelines of the Routt County Master Plan and Upper Elk River Valley Community Plan and is in
compliance with Sections 4, 5, and 6 of the Routt County Zoning Regulations and Sections 2, 3
and 4 of the Routt County Subdivision Regulations.

This approval is subject to the following conditions:

1. Aresolution vacating portions of the utility easements shall be recorded concurrently with
the Final Plat.

2. Utility and drainage easements on either side of the new lot lines shall be shown and
dedicated on the final plat.

Commissioner DeFrancia seconded the motion.

The motion carried 7 - 0, with the Chair voting yes.



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

ACTIVITY: PL20220030

PETITIONER: Lindon’s Ltd and Christian Heritage Foundation of Steamboat Springs
PETITION: Conceptual PUD to create 23 residential lots

LOCATION:  South side of US 40 on the west side of Heritage Park Subdivision

Chairman Warnke noted that five written comments regarding the proposal had been received and
distributed to Planning Commission at the meeting, but that the deadline for submitting written
comments is 72 hours prior to the meeting. He said that these comments will be included in the file,
but not considered at tonight's meeting. Mr. Goldich said that these comments would be included in
the Board of County Commissioners’ packet.

Mr. Eric Smith of ESA Architecture, representing the petitioner, presented a site plan of the
proposed Conceptual PUD. He said that this proposal represents aiedification of the prior
approval for four single family lots on Parcels C and six single f lots on Parcel D. He reviewed
the proposal to leave Parcel D and a portion of Parcel C as o and instead build a new

ual traffic conditions it needs to be
tudy will look at the existing traffic,

has not yet been conducted because in order to reflec
done when school is in session. Mr. Smith sai

that they would be more similar to th wn Steamboat and would allow for more
density and more affordability. ould be deed restricted to not allow short-term
rentals. Mr. Smith offered that :
Issioner Martyn, Mr. Smith said that the petitioner
would be willing to deegdgfe ial sale of the lots to residents of Routt County.

Mr. Ty Lockhart preSehted a compatison of the approved plan and the proposed new site plan. Mr.
Smith stated that he wot ant|C| e that the lots would be sold within a year, with build out to
occurin the 1 -2 years. sCUssed the plan to install the infrastructure and overlay the new
road to minimize the disruption of construction activity.

Mr. Goldich stated that the petition is a Conceptual/Sketch PUD, which is intended to determine if
the proposal is in general compliance with the applicable planning documents. Details of the
proposal are not required at this level of review. He added that if approved, the review will provide
feedback to the applicant regarding any concerns or changes that need to be addressed prior to
the next review. Mr. Goldich stated that staff's recommendation is that the proposal be approved
with the suggested conditions and that sidewalks should be required.

Mr. Goldich presented a vicinity map. He noted that the approved development of Parcels C & D
included the soccer fields as part of the 25% open space requirement. He said that the PUD Plan
for that development was approved and recorded, but the Final Plat was not recorded, which is
why no lots are shown on the map for Parcels C & D.



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

Mr. Goldich reviewed the proposal that would create 20 single family lots and 3 duplex lots.
Secondary dwelling units (SDUs) would be allowed on the single family lots. The residences would
be required to have 2-car garages setback at least 20 ft. from the front property line. Porches
would have a 10-ft. setback from the front property line. Having individual setbacks for porches
and garages helps to ensure that the garage is not the dominant feature of the residence. The
proposed side setbacks are 5 ft. and the proposed rear setbacks are 10 ft. Mr. Goldich noted that
the proposed setbacks are smaller than what is typical in the County to allow for greater density.
He stated that the proposed open space would fulfill the 25% requirement for the entire
subdivision, including the existing Heritage Park. The soccer fields, however, would be removed.
No uses have been identified for the proposed new open space areas. Mr. Goldich noted that
PUDs are intended to provide community amenities. He offered that Planning Commission could
provide recommendations regarding potential uses of the open space.

Mr. Goldich said that the City’s referral comments state that the prop
the Steamboat Springs Area Community Plan (SSACP) and cite
Goldich noted, however, that this parcel is not eligible for anne

lis not in compliance with
on GM 1.1 and GM 1.2. Mr.
s it is not contiguous with the

access off of US 40 that serves Heritage Park
new development and the access off of Brand

said that Planning Cap ] ansider if sidewalks should be required, and if so, where

) ent in the staff packet, Mr. Goldich noted that the river is
sed houses would not block the view of the river. He added
that Planning CommissiO onsider whether the proposed density is appropriate, whether
the proposed open space areas are useable, and if so, what uses would be appropriate for the
open space. In response to a question from Chairman Warnke, Mr. Goldich stated that there are no
sidewalks in Heritage Park.

Chairman Warnke asked about the transfer of Parcel E to the homeowners’ association, which was
mention in one of the letters that was submitted. Mr. Goldich stated that Routt County was not
involved in that matter, so it is not being addressed.

Commissioner Martyn asked what uses were established for the open space when the 10-lot PUD
was approved. Mr. Goldich stated that the soccer fields were identified as the open space. He
reviewed the history of the PUDs and subsequent amendments that were approved for the school,
the soccer fields, the 80-lot Heritage Park subdivision and the 10-lots on Parcels C & D. He noted
that the soccer fields were intended to provide the community benefit. Ms .Winser stated that the
proposal now being considered includes re-allocation of the open space areas, which at this point
do not have any defined uses.



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

Commissioner Jaeger asked about the parking area to the west of the school and whether its
reduction in size or elimination under the current proposal would have a significant impact. Mr.
Goldich said that the parking area is not used as part of the pick-up/drop-off traffic pattern. He said
that the traffic issue is more about circulation than about parking. He confirmed, however, that the
parking area would be reduced. Commissioner Jaeger asked about the width of the private drive
proposed to serve the residential lots and whether it would be wide enough to accommodate
emergency vehicles, particularly during the winter. Mr. Goldich said that this is the kind of issue
that could be modified prior to the next level of review in response to referral comments. He said
that the design is not final.

Commissioner Martyn expressed concern that the useable open space and the community benefit
tied to the approval of the 80-lot subdivision is being eliminated with this proposal. Mr. Goldich said
that whether the areas identified as open space in the new proposal ase sufficient to satisfy the
requirement of community benefit is one of the questions that need§*to be addressed. He
acknowledged that the acreage meets the 25% requirement, b uestion is what uses would
be appropriate in those areas.

Commissioner Jaeger asked if there is a public play iated with'the school. Mr. Goldich
said that there is smaII playground, but that it is only maintai

In response to a question regarding r. Goldich compared the proposed setbacks to
the setbacks in Heritage Park. @ offered that the proposed side setbacks
would be insufficient to handle Ninser noted that the proposed open space
areas include a retentionpend and Iand areas along the highway. She asked Planning
Commission to consi be appropriate for these areas and the other open

space.

Public Comment
Ms. Casey Quillen, a resid eritage Park, asked Planning Commission to consider the need
for connectivity and mobility. She said that this development proposal offers an opportunity to
ensure pedestrian and bicycle access and safety, and specifically a safe crossing of US 40 and
safe routes for kids to access their schools and their friends on either side of the highway. She
suggested that although US 40 is under the jurisdiction of CDOT, the County needs to be involved.
She stated that the proposal should not be approved unless it includes safe access routes for kids.
Ms. Quillen stated that the developments west of town are lacking in connectivity to each other and
to Steamboat Springs.

Mr. Roger Ashton, a resident of Heritage Park, a Heritage Park homeowners’ association (HOA)
member and YVHA Board member, said that he is speaking on his own behalf. He urged Planning
Commission to deny the proposal. He noted that all of the areas being proposed for development
were included in the original PUD for Heritage Park and included 5 soccer fields, a tot lot, and a
playground, all of which will be lost with the new proposal. He said that kids from Heritage Park will
then be crossing the highway to access recreational amenities in Steamboat Il and at Sleeping



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

Giant School. He added that the Heritage Park HOA governing documents include language that
excludes the owners of these parcels and the school from contributing to the HOA, which means
that they have benefited at no cost to them from improvements that the HOA has made. Mr. Ashton
stated that the proposed new development would use the same access from US 40 as Heritage
Park and the school, which is already a tremendous problem for the neighborhood. He also offered
that the construction traffic, because it will occur at the entrance to the subdivision, will have a big
impact on the existing neighborhood for perhaps 5 — 10 years. Mr. Ashton stated that the City of
Steamboat Springs has stated that the proposal is not in compliance with the SSACP. He added
that the proposed lot sizes are significantly smaller than those in the existing surrounding
neighborhoods and the increased density would have a major impact on traffic. Mr. Ashton also
expressed concern that only the initial sale would be deed restricted for Routt County residents,
which means that the units will not provide local housing for long. He suggested that if approved, a
deed restriction should be required stipulating that the units can be purchased only as a primary
residence by Routt County residents, and that the deed restriction shauld be in perpetuity, not just
for the first sale. He added that snow storage areas have not beepd@entified on the PUD plan, and
the reduced setbacks may not be sufficient to accommodate s the side or in front of the

would pay to plow the private drive accessing these ne
traffic study is being required, CDOT has already sta
ich would be a nightmare. He
stated that although there is a letter of intent from the St oat |l Metro to provide water and

sub-station may not have capacity to serve the
Planning Commission deny the application.

property never happened. Hei§aid that the Parcel is now covered in weeds, while Heritage Park is
without a real neighborhood park. He said that the future of Parcel E needs to be addressed as
part of the solution to the open space. He offered that some of the areas designated as open space
on the new proposal are not appropriate areas for kids to play. Mr. Pierson also expressed his
concern with traffic, as cited by others.

Ms. Kelly Conway, a resident of Heritage Park, stated that the traffic congestion and kids trying to
cross US 40 are already big problems. She stated that there needs to be a controlled intersection
or an overpass or underpass. She also noted that the soccer fields are not maintained and there is
no other developed park land, which will only be worse if the open space is relegated to the bogs
by the highway. Ms. Conway said she would like to see the open space developed as it was
supposed to be under the original PUD. She offered that the 10 lots that have been approved are
as many as the neighborhood can handle. She added that there is waitlist for spots at the Christian
Heritage pre-school.



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

Ms. Rita Donham, a nearby landowner, stated her agreement with the comments made by Ms.
Conway, Mr. Pierson, Ms. Quillen, and Mr. Ashton. She reiterated that the open space areas
originally identified were intended to provide useable soccer fields and a buffer from the highway
as community benefits. The new proposal would take away that benefit. She offered that what the
applicant is proposing is disingenuous and greedy, and way too much. She noted that there is still
no fire station to serve the areas west of town and no real park. She said that the soccer fields are
not used because they are not maintained. She also cited the need for an overpass or underpass
of US 40. Ms. Donham said that she is totally opposed to the proposal.

Mr. Brian Bainum, a resident of Heritage Park, stated his agreement with all the previous
comments, and expressed his opposition to the proposal. He noted that with the proposed SDUs,
the proposal would increase the neighborhood by 32.5%.

Seeing no further comment, Chairman Warnke closed public comme,

Commissioner Weese stated that although he is not opposed

oposed density, he is not in
support of how it is being proposed. He cited that the mobilj i

In response to a question from Commissi egarding what qualifies as open space, Ms.
Winser stated that what is accepta satisfy the 25% requirement is up to the

' he noted that this is a Conceptual PUD and
any feedback would be conside

of review. She stated thatam.a at the Conceptual level does not guarantee an approval at
the next level. She not fiestudy and referral comments would also inform the design.
Planning Commis Ic study would be very important, and should address
not only the entrance also Brandon Circle, the school traffic and the private road

: ymmissioner Martyn suggested that the adequacy of the reduced
parking lot to serve school evénts should also be considered. Commissioner Norris added that
transit should be taken into account.

Commissioner Jaeger expressed concern with the lack of designated snow storage and with the
reduced size of the school parking area. Commissioner Weese added that the pedestrian safety
within the subdivision needs to be considered. There was consensus that full-width sidewalks
should be required on the private road and on at least one side of Brandon Circle.

There was a discussion of the open space. Mr. Goldich offered that the school should be involved
in the discussion to ensure that any plans it may have for the use of the open space be listed on
the PUD. Chairman Warnke expressed concern regarding the usability of the areas identified as
open space. Mr. Goldich stated that Planning Commission and the Board can take into account the
value of the open space, and offered that the maintenance of the open space and parking for those
areas should be considered, as well. Commissioner Martyn stated that his opinion on the proposal
hinges on the open space. He suggested that the petitioner should present a plan for the open



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

space and its uses that meets the needs of the community — both the proposed units and the
existing residents of Heritage Park. He stated that the plan should provide details on landscaping,
lighting, parking, and the uses of the open space. He said that the community benefit was for the
applicant to propose and for Planning Commission to review and consider. Planning Commission
agreed.

There was also consensus that access and mobility need to be addressed. Mr. Goldich asked if the
setbacks would be sufficient if sidewalks are required. There was a discussion of how the street
profile would be designed to accommodate the sidewalks and snow storage without reducing the
front setbacks. Commissioner Martyn stated that more detailed urban design was needed for a
proposal of this density.

Commissioner Miller stressed the importance of deed restrictions prohibiting short-term rentals,
and added that this prohibition should also be stated in the covenantseCommissioner Martyn
stated that additional deed restrictions could be considered, and missioner Jaeger offered that
size restrictions on the SDUs could be valuable.

Mr. Goldich summarized the items to be added to the C

MOTION
Commissioner Weese moved to recommend approval o
with the findings of fact that the proposal with i
guidelines of the Routt County Master Plan, t
West Steamboat Springs Area Plan.

Conceptual PUD, item PL20220030,
itions meets the applicable
gs Area Community Plan, and the

This approval is subject to the
Conceptual PUD:

1. This Conceptuald
Preliminary Sufs
be approved adm

Subdivision:
1. The Final PUD plan shall be recorded concurrently with the Final Plat.

2. All federal, state and local permits shall be obtained, including but not limited to: Grading And
Excavating, Work in the Right of Way, and Access permits

3. Prior to recordation, the applicant shall submit an electronic copy of the approved plat to the
County Planning Department in a format acceptable to the GIS Department.

4. All property taxes must be paid prior to the recording of the final plat.
5. The Preliminary Plan submittal shall include the following detailed information:
a. Utility plans (roads, water, sewer, dry utilities, fire hydrants, drainage)

b. Snow storage areas for the proposed new roadway and Brandon Circle utilizing the City of
Steamboat Springs’ standards



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

- ® o o

0.

Soils report
Landscaping plan
Utility easements

Plan showing land to be dedicated as open space in conformance with Section 7.3.F of the
Zoning Regulations. Uses of open space shall be identified.

Engineered drainage plan which results in no net increase of runoff from the site.

A traffic study performed by a registered Colorado Engineer based upon the number of
approved lots shall be submitted with the Preliminary Plan. The study shall take into
account the adequacy of the access off of Highway 40, traffic associated with drop off and
pick up at the school, and the ability of Brandon Circle to handle the increase in traffic.
Comments on the study shall be obtained from the Colorado Dept. of Transportation and
Routt County Public Works, prior to submittal of the Prelimi Plan.

fills and visual scarring.

Engineer drawings for connection to the cen nd sewer system.
Letter of intent to provide water and ice from Steamboat Il Metro District.
Draft Covenants
Wildlife Mitigation Plan app Parks and Wildlife, if required.

Parking plan for the sc

Routt Cou r maintaining or improving subdivision roads. The roads
shown hereonihe gen dedicated nor accepted by the County.
Existing and new '3 es shall meet access standards set forth by the Routt County

Public Works Department and Fire Prevention Services.

Routt County (County) and the Steamboat Springs Rural Fire Protection District (District)
shall be held harmless from any injury, damage, or claim that may be made against the
County or the District by reason of the County’s or the District’s failure to provide
ambulance, fire, rescue or police protection to the property described on this plat, provided
that the failure to provide such services is due to inaccessibility of the property by reason
of internal roads being impassable. This conditions shall not relieve the County or the
District of their responsibility to make a bona fide effort to provide emergency services
should the need arise.

All exterior lighting shall be downcast and opaquely shielded.

Address signage shall be in conformance with Routt County Road Addressing, Naming,
and Signing Policy shall be located at the entrance to the driveway.

10



R.CP.C. MINUTES July 21, 2022

f. A current soils test showing that the soils are sufficiently stable to support development
will be required before obtaining a building permit.

g. Revegetation of disturbed areas shall occur within one growing season with a seed mix
that avoids the use of aggressive grassed. See the Colorado State University Extension
Office for appropriate grass mixes.

7. Applicant shall take the findings of the required traffic study into consideration when designing
the access off of Brandon Circle with particular attention being focused on how to alleviate the
traffic issues on Brandon Circle and US Highway 40 during pick up and drop off times at the
school.

8. Covenants shall include:
a. Requirement to control noxious weeds
b. Roads will be privately maintained
c. No on street parking
d. No short-term rentals

Commissioner Norris seconded the motion.

The motion carried 7 - 0, with the Chair voting yes.

ACTIVITY: PL20220003
PETITIONER: Duksa Family,

PETITION: Special Use ’ ing'Station in the Industrial Zone District

LOCATION:  Approximately es west of Steamboat Springs on the south side of US
40

Mr. Goldich reviewed a recycling transfer station. He reviewed the history of the site,

which was rezoned fro /Forestry (A/F) to Industrial (1) in 1990. He said that a site plan

review for an electrical co g business had been approved in 1991, but was never acted
upon. The recycling station has been operating on the site since 2006 without a permit. Mr. Goldich
said that when staff became aware of the situation due to an inquiry from a prospective buyer, a
notice of violation was issued. Mr. Goldich stated that no complaints regarding the operation at this
location have ever been received and that staff recommends approving the petition with the
suggested conditions of approval (COAs). Mr. Goldich presented an aerial photo of the site and
presented a site plan. He indicated the access road that crosses the railroad tracks. The access off
of US 40 is shared with the Steamboat Il Metro District. Accel and decel lanes are in place on US
40 to serve this site as well as the adjacent gravel pit. Mr. Goldich reviewed the uses on the site
and presented photos. He noted that the applicant intends to improve the drainage on the site and
to install a retention pond. He stated that the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT)
submitted a comment stating that the site does not have an access permit. The applicant will have
to work with CDOT to obtain a permit, if that is deemed necessary. Mr. Goldich stated that all of the
proposed uses are currently taking place. He said that the issues for discussion include whether

11



	ROUTT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	July 21, 2022
	19. All regular reports required by any permitting agency shall be submitted to the Routt County designee, including but not limited to the annual stormwater permit report.





